ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
February 1, 2005
11: 04 a. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Mark Neuman, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Bill Thomas
Representati ve Peggy W son
Representative Les Gara
Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Max Gruenburg
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 20

"An Act relating to a separate appropriation bill for operating
expenses for primary and secondary public education and
establishing a date by which the bill nust be transmtted to the

governor each year; relating to notice of nonretention for
tenured teachers; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BILL NO 13
"An Act relating to reinbursenent of municipal bonds for schoo
construction; and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 20
SHORT TI TLE: EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- February 1, 2005



SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE(S) SEATON

01/ 10/ 05 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H) EDU, HES, FIN

01/ 24/ 05 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
01/ 24/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 05 (H) EDU, HES, FIN

01/ 25/ 05 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 25/ 05 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 01/ 05 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 13

SHORT TI TLE: SCHOCL CONSTRUCTI ON BOND REI MBURSEMENT
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) GATTO, GRUENBERG

01/ 10/ 05 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 10/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H) EDU, HES, FIN

01/ 25/ 05 (H) EDU AT 11:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 25/ 05 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 01/ 05 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

EDDY JEANS, Director

School Fi nance

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment, EED

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 20; testified in
opposition to HB 13.

DAN BECK, Superi nt endent

Delta Geely School District

Del ta Junction, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support HB 20.

MARGARET G LMAN, Treasurer

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School Board

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 20.

MELODY DOQUGLAS, Chief Financial Oficer

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District, KPBSD
Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 20.
ANNE KI LKENNY

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- February 1, 2005



Wasilla, Al aska
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of early funding;
testified in support of HB 13.

BRUCE JOHNSON, Director

Quality School s/ Quality Students Service (QS2)

Al aska Associ ation of School Boards, AASB

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the stabilization
of teaching positions.

JOHN ALCANTRA, Director

Gover nnent Rel ati ons

Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on of Al aska, NEA- Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 20 with the
anendnent of changing the notification date from March 16 to
March 25.

KATH E WASSERMAN, Pol i cy Coordi nat or

Al aska Muni ci pal League, AM

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 20.

Cl NDY SPANYERS, Legislative Liason

Al aska Public Enployees Association/Amrerican Federation of
Teachers, APEA/ AFT

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 20.

KIM FLOYD, Spokeswoman

Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough School District, MSBSD
Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 13.

GEORGE VAKALI S, Assistant Superint endent
Anchorage School District, ASD

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 13.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR MARK NEUMAN called the House Special Conmittee on

Education neeting to order at 11:04:38 AM Represent ati ves
Wlson, Gatto, Lynn, and Thomas were present at the call to
order. Representatives Gara and Salnon arrived as the neeting

was in progress.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- February 1, 2005



HB 20 - EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG

CHAI R NEUMAN announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 20, "An Act relating to a separate appropriation
bill for operating expenses for primary and secondary public
education and establishing a date by which the bill nust be
transmtted to the governor each year; and providing for an
effective date."

11: 06: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON, sponsor to HB 20, stated that the
purpose of HB 20 is to address a problemin districts across the
state. He explained that the education budget is delayed unti
late in the year forcing school districts to fire teachers and
then attenpt to rehire them later. He said, "This is very
di sruptive and denoralizing to teachers.” He explained that HB
20 requires the governor to subnmt the education budget
separately by the fourth day of the session, and the legislature
to approve that budget by March 15 of each year. He clarified
that the sponsor substitute for HB 20 changed the date from
April 1 to March 15, because the notification period for
teachers is set at March 16. He explained that Section 2 of the
bill noves the notification date for tenured teachers to March
25, providing a ten-day window for the legislature to act and
t he governor to approve. He pointed out that the bill provides
for separate funding of the foundation formul a.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON summari zed that the intent of the bill is
to get early funding of education. He noted that while the bil
does not address a dollar anount, it ensures early funding and
the districts will know how nuch noney they have and the status
of their teachers. He pointed out that the commttee nenbers
were given copies of the sponsor statenment and zero fiscal note
as well as letters of support from the Kenai Peninsula Borough
School District, (KPBSD), the Lower Kuskokw m District, and an
i ndi vi dual teacher. The nenbers also received a letter of
support from the National Education Association of Alaska, (NEA-
Al aska), although, he noted, NEA-Al aska has an issue with the
March 16 date. He concluded that the bill needs to be addressed
so that, "school districts throughout the state have a better
working relationship within the teaching community and that we
don't unnecessarily burden themw th disruptive practices.”

11: 09: 56 AM

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- February 1, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if Representative Seaton had received
| etters of opposition fromany school districts.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that he did not receive any such
| etters.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if any professional t eachers’
associ ati ons had commented on the bill

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that NEA-Alaska wote a letter

supporting the concept of the bill, however, "they did have a
problemwth noving the ... mandatory date for notifying tenured
teachers, fromthe 16th to the 25th [of March]. They supported
Sections 1 and 3, which is the essence of the bill." He added
that G ndy Spanyers, legislative liason for the Al aska Public
Enpl oyees Associ ati on/ Aneri can Feder ati on of Teachers,

(APEA/ AFT), will testify on the bill

CHAI R NEUVAN asked what the mmjor obstacle has been in passing
this type of bill

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answer ed:

One of the problenms was [that] the date was April 1
it's been April 15 in the past, and that really
didn't cure the problem of the statutory requirenent
for districts to notify their teachers that they
woul dn't be rehired. ... The bill noves forward that
date to ... March 15 ... and then noves back the date
of the teacher notification ten days, to give a ten-
day w ndow. So what this does is gets us forward of
that so that districts wouldn't have to get into this
crunch of notifying their enployees of term nation.

11: 12: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked why tenured and non-tenured teachers
have different notification dates.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that tenured teachers have
specific rights and privileges that are established, whereas
non-tenured teachers are hired on a year-to-year basis.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON opi ned that all teachers, tenured and non-

tenured, would like to know whether they have a job the
follow ng year or if they need to apply el sewhere.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- February 1, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented he shares this opinion and that
he thinks the districts use this date for notifying nmainly non-
tenured teachers because tenured teachers are very seldom | aid-
of . He said, "Not knowng what their budget 1is, [the
districts] use this statutory date for tenured teachers as the
date by which they want to notify their non-tenured teachers.™

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated that because of decreased funding,
there are school systens that have had to continually cut back
She remarked that she knows of at |east four school systens that
have had to cut back to where they have only tenured teachers
left.

11:16: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that there always seens to be tension
bet ween early fundi ng and adequate funding. He continued:

It seens sonehow the forces during the |legislative
session sonehow get to the point where we can get a
better school budget later in the session ... but we
have the tension because we don't want the school
districts to send out the pink slips, so we also want
to get it to them early and the chall enge has al ways
been to try and find a way to get them both. ..

REPRESENTATI VE GARA pronoted changing the statutory date when
school districts have to submit funding to their nunicipa
gover nnent s.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that it would be a disservice to
make teachers wait for notifications until May 1, and that they
woul d mss opportunities for other jobs. He stated that the
intention is to nove the process forward so that if people have
to be laid off, they have the best w ndow of opportunity to get
t he best job possible.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that conpleting the budget by Mrch 15
would be a conplicated issue and asked if it could get done by
March 15, each year. He then inquired as to creating coverage
by statute for PERS/ TRS and inflation costs.

11: 22: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON stated that covering PERS/TRS and
inflation proofing is another issue. He advocated for dealing
with each district and it's needs, individually. He opined that

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- February 1, 2005



district issues need to be dealt with each year. He expl ai ned
that the purpose of this bill is to segregate the education
budget as a separate budget, excluding the costs of other
operating consi derations.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said that the nunicipality fiscal vyear
ends June 30th and that their budget is planned around the
school budget. She comented that she is in support of HB 20
and thinks that it will nmake a big difference for schools in the
| ong run.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that schools are subject to |aws of
supply and demand and that now, the supply of teachers is
relatively low, and the demand is relatively high. He advocated
for creating an environment for teachers that offers certainty
in their job placenent. He expressed his appreciation for [HB
20] .

11:27: 40 AM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance, Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent, (EED), stated that the EED is supportive
of the concept of wearly funding, but would nake specific

reconmendations regarding the March 15 date. He pointed out
that on page 1 line 9, it is stated that the governor submts an
appropriations bill to the legislature limted to carry out
"Alaska Statute 14.17". He explained that "14.17" is the

foundati on program and that |anguage would limt the ability to
i nclude pupil transportation, schools for the handicapped, and

ot her K-12 conponents. He clarified that he did not have a
written anmendnent, but that the word "limted" restricts the EED
fromsubmtting a bill beyond the foundation program

CHAIR NEUVAN asked M. Jeans to submt his suggestions to the
commttee, in witing.

11: 29: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS inquired as to the |anguage associated
with "Al aska statute 14.21.77".

MR. JEANS explained that the provision referring to statute

"14.21. 77" deals with reductions in workforce. He expl ai ned
that it offers criteria for districts to neet for eligibility to
fire tenured teachers. He continued, "so, the way the statute

is laid out is if you think you are going to have |ess funding
t hrough the appropriation nmechanism or fewer students, you nust

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- February 1, 2005



notify tenured teachers by Mirch 15 of the potential that
they'Il be laid off. |In terns of non-tenured teachers, you have
"til the end of the school year to provide themw th notice."

11: 31: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS commented that the |anguage [in HB 20] is
difficult to understand.

DAN  BECK, Superi nt endent, Delta/ Geely School District,
("DGSD'), stated that he supports HB 20. He expl ained that the
"DGSD' does not intend to fire any teachers this year due to

rapid grow h. He explained that the "DGSD' is planning on
hiring highly qualified teachers to fill those positions, but
the budget is unknown. He described the formation of the

district's budget:

W have to start with our projections in REAA' s [Rural
Educati on Attendance Area] somewhere around the first
part of January putting the budget together; even
t hough that budget is not passed in the final state by
the board until June, we have to have it in the state
cl ose enough where we can go out to hire in March and
since personnel mekes up nost of the budget, it is
critical to have that information early. | think that
Eddy Jeans had a really good point on noving the date
in this bill back to March 1 ... we support the bill
in totality. W were in the position a couple years
ago where we did lay off tenured teachers under the
new reduction in force, and it's difficult, it's tine
consum ng, and | wouldn't w sh that on anybody else in
the state.

MARGARET G LMAN, Treasurer, Kenai Peninsula Borough Schoo
Board, expressed support for Representative Seaton's HB 20. She
related that as a school board nenber, she appreciates known
funding before hiring decisions are nade. She said that in the
current situation, with current funding, there is a trenendous
| evel of wuncertainty during the spring of each year and teachers
are fearful of losing their jobs. She offered a suggestion of
pl anni ng the budget one year in advance so that staffing would
be known for the upcom ng school year.

MELODI E DOQUGLAS, Chief Financial Oficer, Kenai Peni nsul a
Bor ough School District, (KPBSD), stated that the KPBSD Board of
Education has adopted a legislative priority in support of this
type of action. She said the Board of Education supports

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- February 1, 2005



recommendations noving the date forward to March 1 and |eaving
the notification date for hiring at March 16. She related that
it is disruptive in school districts to go through these
processes and it affects children in the classroom when staff
are worried about their job status. She said that noving the
date could hinder the hiring process; job fairs start in Mrch
and run through April and May. She opined that it is essential
to stabilize education and beneficial to fund early. She echoed

M. Jeans's recommendation that this bill should be anended to
reflect all K-12 prograns, and that those prograns are inportant
in the planning process from a budget standpoint. She expressed

thanks in being given the opportunity to comment and encouraged
support of HB 20.

11: 38: 45 AM

Anne Kil kenny stated that she is an active volunteer in the
Kenai school system and agrees with the aforenentioned reasons
for early funding. She opined that [early funding] would reduce
anxi ety and uncertainty, help districts properly budget and neke
the system nore efficient. She said that she appreciates the
debate generated by this bill and the reasons for early funding
have good nerit.

11:42: 37 AM

BRUCE  JOHNSON, Director, Quality Schools/Quality Students
Service, (Q@S2), Association of Alaska School Boards, (AASB)
stated that the AASB does not have a position or a resolution on
this particular concept. He continued:

we've had one in the past ... we certainly agree with
Representative Seaton that it would do many things in
terms of stabilizing our teaching force and assuring
peopl e that they have positions and in no way would we

want to ... discredit this ... adequacy is really what
we are after as an association. W wll be working on
this issue with our nenbership ... urging districts to

weigh in on this issue in a way that nakes sense for
them personally in their own circunstances.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Johnson if he thinks that we are
trading one problem for another because education funding is
tied to our budget, our budget is tied to the price of oil and

the price of oil is unpredictable. He stated that he understood
that being present for funding decisions later in the session
when the price of oil is known is desirable.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- February 1, 2005



MR. JOHNSON opined that education has been well served during
times of scarcity. He stated that it is a trade off and schools
can benefit from early funding and from contributing to funding
deci si ons when the projections are known.

JOHN  ALCANTRA, Director, Gover nnent Rel ati ons, Nat i onal
Educati on Associ ation of Al aska, (NEA-Al aska), stated that [ NEA-
Al aska] represents about 12,500 public school enployees around
Al aska. He applauded Representatives Seaton, Chenault, and
Wlson and thinks the forward funding concept is a great idea.
He described a recent |[NEA-Al aska] assenbly where 400 elected
del egates set policy for the year and passed a resolution for
adequate and forward funding of education. He opined that the
suggestions made by the adm nistration and Eddy Jeans suggesting
the March 1/ March 5 date and |leaving the tenure date at March 16

were good and hopes they wll be considered. He thanked the
commttee for hearing this bill and opined that it 1is an
i nportant concept. He stated that |[NEA-Alaska] has had

resol utions of support in the past and nentioned the letter from
PRESI DENT BJORK of NEA-Alaska, wthin the commttee packet,
whi ch appl auded Sections 1 and 3 of HB 20. He expl ained that
[ NEA- Al aska] supports changing the date from March 16 to March
25. He thanked Representative Seaton and the other co-sponsors
for noving [HB 20] forward.

11:47:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked M. Alcantra if the resolution is for
early and adequate funding. He questioned if the [NEA-Al aska]
resolution supports a stand-alone early funding bill, or if
there is a caveat saying that the [NEA-Al aska] supports early
funding if adequate funding can be provided.

MR. ALCANTRA stated that the NEA-Al aska supports early funding
if it is adequate. He said that the [NEA-Al aska] believes there
is room in this budget for fiscal year (FY) 06 and future
budgets to adequately fund K-12 public education as well as fund

it early so districts know what they are going to get. He
related that the NEA-Alaska thinks that the two can go hand in
hand and expects that they will and that this is another year
where legislators will put K-12 education as the nunber one
i ssue.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if NEA-Al aska supports the bill only
if there is a guarantee of adequate funding.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- February 1, 2005



11:49: 15 AM

MR. ALCANTRA stated that NEA-Al aska supports the bill. He
described the letter in the conmttee packet as verification of
the support of early funding. He explained that the NEA-Al aska
believes that early and adequate will be coupled and go hand in
hand.

KATH E WASSERMAN, Policy Coordinator, Al aska Minicipal League
(AML), stated that AML has identified forward education funding
as one of the priorities for this year, and stands behind HB 20
in full support. She said that there are some trickle down
effects that inhibit nmunicipalities from going forward when
there is not forward funding on education. She expl ai ned that
many small comunities nmake their revenues from rentals to
teachers and if they can't identify how many teachers will be in
their comunity, it inpacts their budgets. She said that if
[the notification date] were changed to June 1, it would be very
difficult for school boards and nunicipal councils to cone
toget her and nake decisions by July 1. She concluded that the
AML is in full support of HB 20.

11:51: 10 AM

Cl NDY SPANYERS, Legislative Liaison, Al aska Public Enployees
Associ ation/ Amrerican Federation of Teachers, (APEA/ AFT), read
witten testinony as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Among other bargaining groups in state service,
city/ borough governnents, and with the University of
Al aska, we represent enployees wthin Anchorage,
Val dez, Juneau, and Petersburg school districts.
Their professions ranges from para-professionals to
mai nt enance wor kers; school nur ses to schoo
| i brarians; teachers and special education providers,
and adm ni strative personnel.

But I am also here on behalf of ny seven-year old son
and hi s second- gr ade cl assmat es at Auke Bay
El enment ary.

| would like to begin by thanking HB 20's sponsor
Representative Seaton, and nenbers of this commttee
for making education a priority. Last year, severa
of you who served on this conm ttee t ook
responsibility for securing on of the bi ggest
i ncreases in educational funding. During the course

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- February 1, 2005



of these discussions, you also realized the quandary
| ocal school districts and the |ocal governnents face
when establishing their budgets and neeting their
obligations in a tinely fashion.

| appreciate any efforts you can do to help school
districts beconme fully funded early enough to nmake
solid plans for the forthcom ng school year. HB 20 is
a big step in the right direction.

Agai n, thank you for your efforts to help provide the
best education to our children.

[HB 20 was hel d over.]

11:53: 38 AM

HB 13- SCHOCOL CONSTRUCTI ON BOND REI MBURSEMENT

CHAI R NEUMAN announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 13 "An Act relating to reinbursenent of nunicipa
bonds for school construction; and providing for an effective
date."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, sponsor to HB 13, stated that [HB 13]
deals with school debt reinbursenent. He related that in his
own district, 13 years ago, two schools were built when school
debt rei nbursenent was "90/10" with the state funding 90 percent
and the local district funding 10 percent. Since then, he
expl ai ned, the state has reduced the anpunt of noney it supplies
for reinbursenent; the state now funds 70 percent. He descri bed
the Mat-Su borough and its growh rate of 500 students each
year, requiring the construction of new schools. He related the
inportance of all districts to find a source of revenue to fund

new school s. This bill, he said, takes the previous statutes
whi ch "sunsetted" on January 1, 2005, and extends the "sunset"”
dat e. He clarified that this gives the borough tinme to

i ntroduce bondi ng | egi sl ation.

11: 56: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBURG invited the [conmittee] to add things
that would benefit educational capital construction. He
explained that this needs to be acconplished this year in
Anchorage, in the Mat-Su, and in other parts of the state. He
enphasi zed that [educational capital construction] is one of the
nost inportant issues facing the nunicipalities.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- February 1, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked how this bill affects rural schoo
districts.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBURG responded that this is legislation
that is needed in certain parts of the state. He said:

the last tinme this was done, there was a contingent
effective date <clause put on the bill ... the
provision that was at issue here, the anendnent, had
.. a contingent effective date that said this
| anguage, extending the 60 to 70 percent school debt
rei mbur senent, woul d becone effective, if and only if,
the voters approved the bond issue that contained

bonding for rural schools ... this would not becone
effective unless two things happened C t he
| egi sl ature passed the other provision ... that other

provi sion authorized bonds to be put to the voters at
the next general election and it would only becone

effective if the voters approved those bonds. It tied
the two together even though they couldn't do it in
the sane bill ... so, we can work with you and people

fromall parts of the state to craft a plan that wl|
be a win-win for everybody, particularly in this year
of high oil prices.

12: 00: 53 PM

CHAIR NEUVAN asked Representative Guenburg to explain how
schools would be funded and how an unorgani zed borough will
manage to get their part of the debt bond rei nbursenent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBURG expl ained that the state floats bonds
and pays the cost of repaying those bonds. In the areas that
have the bonding capacity, he said, the state pays a snaller
per cent age because the municipality has the ability to pay the

rest. He described projects receiving a 60 or 70 percent
r ei mbur senent dependi ng on whet her t hey neet certain
construction specifications. He said the municipality has the

ability to pay a partial match but in the areas that don't, the
state pays the full cost.

12: 02: 33 PM

In response to Chair Neuman's question, Representative G uenburg
clarified that nunicipalities do not have the ability to propose

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- February 1, 2005



construction. He explained that voters know every project
t hey' re fundi ng.

CHAI R NEUMAN asked how funding for schools is appropriated.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBURG said that in the past cash was used for
school s. Now, he related, bonds will be used and this spreads
the cost of projects over tine. He pointed out that as the
generations that use those schools reach maturity, they bear
part of the cost of repaying the bonds.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that noney wll not reach the
unor gani zed boroughs. He discussed that when the bond bill
passed, it was decided that the noney would go to all districts.

12: 05: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBURG expl ained that he would like to nake
this part of a broader package of | egislation.

REPRESENTATIVE GARA clarified that this bill, wthout any
anmendnents, is strictly for the organi zed boroughs.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that there is a need to construct

school s and whether or not this bill covers all of the needs in
districts, it deals with an existing need that is easily
i dentifiable. He explained that it is sinply a mtter of

extending a "sunset" date to existing legislation that was
al ready approved and functi oni ng.

12: 08: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that though he supports [HB 13] there
are portions in the state that won't benefit fromthis bill. He
inquired as to the bond package and if it allows school
districts unlimted bondi ng capacity.

12:09: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBURG stated that under [HB 13] there is no
cap. When the package of |egislation passed, he related, the
anounts of the bonds were known and it was known how much was
going to be bonded for all of the projects.

12: 10: 13 PM

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- February 1, 2005



EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance, Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent, (EED), stated that he would |ike to nmake
clarifications on the previous discussion. He said that there
were two bills that were passed in 2002:

one was a state "geo" bond package that had a list of
schools of approximately $171 nmillion dollars that
required a statewide vote of all Al askans before the
state would issue state "geo" bonds to pay for that
$171 million dollars in school construction throughout
Al aska. Conti ngent wupon an affirmative vote, which
did occur, the debt reinbursenent program was extended
for a two year period, no caps, that allowed
rei mbursenent of 60 or 70 percent, dependent on the

i ndi vi dual project. If it nmet the Departnent of
Education's eligibility criteria, it qualified for 70
percent reinbursenment; if the district wanted to go

beyond the departnment's eligibility «criteria, the
project was eligible for 60 percent reinbursenent.

The debt reinbursenent program also required that you
get those bonds approved by the local voters, so there
was a two step approval process there, one at the

|l ocal level and one at the state of Alaska |evel.
Once that approval occurred ... then the I ocal
muni ci pality can go and issue bonds for a mninmm for
10 years, and the state wll reinburse on the

princi pal and interest of those bonds over the life of
t hose bonds, subject to annual appropriation by the

| egi sl ature. "HB 2003" also required the Departnent
of Education to prepare a report back to the
| egi sl ature next January ... on the effectiveness of

this dual system the "geo" bonds for the rura
schools and the debt reinbursenent program for the
muni ci pal school districts.

The departnent is opposed to this piece of |egislation
because we believe that we need to have tine to do our
analysis to give you good information in your decision

making process ... through the last two years, the
departnment and nmunicipal governnents have approved
$728 mllion dollars in construction projects in
muni ci pal school districts ... so we need tinme to do
our analysis, to be able to tell you what the I|ong
term fiscal inpacts on the state wll be for this
program before we go and extend it again. And the

| egi slation actually foresaw us needing that time, and

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- February 1, 2005



provided us that tinme through the intent |anguage to
do this report.

12: 13: 24 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN asked about how this could affect bonds that the
state is trying to nove forward on

MR. JEANS said that he would defer that question to the
Departnent of Revenue, as they are the experts in that area.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if the Departnment of Revenue has
been asked about their position in this situation.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBURG stated that he realizes the necessity
of doing this study, but as there is additional noney now, and
the [nonetary] situation is unpredictable from quarter to
quarter, the study conducted may not be valid in the near
future

12:15:12 PM

MR. JEANS comented that the State of Alaska will be paying on
t he debt reinbursenent program for 10 to 20 years. He explained
that the debt reinbursenent budget this year is $88 million, and
school districts have not issued all of the bonds for the $728
mllion that have been authorized in the last two years. He
said that the state's annual obligation for those bonds is
unknown until the analysis is conplete.

REPRESENTATI VE THOMVAS inquired as to how many schools need to be
built and/or replaced and if other communities report to the EED
if they are in need.

MR. JEANS explained that the EED does not receive applications

from all of the school districts so it is difficult to
accurately give a statewi de need nunber. He comented that the
EED has a school construction |list and a nmajor nmaintenance |i st
that have been prioritized for the |egislature. He expressed
his surprise that the debt reinbursenent program authorized over
$700 million in projects two years ago. He explained that the

two proposals went together two years ago, and what is being
asked now is, how would we nove forward and fund grant projects
for REAA's while funding debt projects. He concluded that this
piece of legislation extends the debt program two additional
years.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- February 1, 2005



12:17: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS nentioned that the reason the school
district in Haines got behind was the |ack of noney from the
state over the years of rebuilding and renodel i ng school s.

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked M. Jeans how nuch tinme he needed to
conplete the analysis and if he was opposed to HB 13.

MR. JEANS said that the EED is required to provide a report back
to the legislature next January. He stated that the EED is
opposed to this bill

12:20: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO clarified that the EED is opposed to the
bill because the analysis is not conplete.

MR. JEANS stated that he can't say whether the EED is opposed
wi th the analysis. He expressed that the EED wants to conplete
the analysis so that a good reconmmendation can be provided to
the | egislature. He said that extending the debt reinbursenent
program for an additional two years wthout caps, wll incur
additional long-termliability on the State of Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that the prioritization of school
districts that can qualify for debt reinbursenent is left up to
the local communities. It is assuned, he explained, that if the
| ocal community wll pay 20 or 30 percent, then it is an
inmportant project and is paid for by the state. He inquired as
to how | ocal projects are ranked.

12:21:42 PM

MR. JEANS said that under the debt reinbursenment program that
just "sunsetted", there was no ranking process and there were no
caps in place. He explained that if there was |ocal approval,
the project was submtted to the EED and approved for 60 or 70
percent reinbursenent. He described the grant program and that
the EED prioritizes projects based on need and projects are
submtted to the governor and the |egislature for consideration.
He pointed out that the departnment does not provide a 100
percent reinbursement for any school, even the REAA's who are
required to nmake a 2 percent contribution to their schools.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBURG asked if there is any federal noney for
this program

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- February 1, 2005



MR. JEANS replied that they are state funded progranms and are
subj ect to annual state appropriation.

In response to Representative Thomas's question, M. Jeans
stated that REAA' s contribute through their state foundation aid
or their federal inpact aid dollars.

12: 24: 04 PM

KIM  FLOYD, Spokeswomrman, Mat anuska- Susitna  Borough  School
District, (MSBSD), stated that in the past five years alone,
MSBSD school s have averaged annual enrollnment growth of 450 to
500 students and bond debt reinbursenent is essential to
insuring that students are educated in safe and effective
| earni ng environments. She explained that this rapid growth has
pl aced significant strain on existing facilities; nore than 13
percent of the total enrollnent, or about 1800 students, are
taught in tenporary facilities. She said that the school board
has been actively working with devel opers and major contractors
in the boroughs to determine current and future school needs.
She said that she understands the state's concern with total
bond indebtedness, "however, we have been extrenely good
stewards with our bonding projects. W haven't taken advantage
or treated the program as if it is an open checkbook, and I
truly hope that our conservative approach won't hurt us now when
we need it nost. W thout schools our community will be faced
with solutions as drastic as double shifting our Palner and
Wasilla area elenentary schools, for that reason anong others we
ask for full support from the legislature for extending this
program again, we are not responsible for the growh, but we
nmust respond and we owe it to our children to do so."

CHAIR NEUVAN asked Ms. Floyd to inform the conmttee on any
steps that have been taken by the MSBSD in noving forward on any
bondi ng.

M5. FLOYD stated that the MSBSD has been conservative. She
explained that if there is state support, then the NMSBSD wil |

decide how to nove forward with funding. She related a bond
package is anticipated for three elenmentary schools that if
opened next year, would be full. She said that it is unknown if

that will go through wi thout any state rei nbursenent.

12: 27: 32 PM

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- February 1, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired as to the "assenbly" passing a
bond package that is contingent upon the state's passing HB 13.

M5. FLOYD said that is unlikely as the MSBSD is a conservative
ar ea.

ANNE KILKENNY explained the overcrowding issues in the
el enentary school s. She enphasized that the bond debt
rei mbursenent is absolutely critical for the Mt-Su area. She
commented that, as a parent, she wants her child in a safe
environment and in a class with a reasonabl e nunber of children.

12:31: 08 PM

GEORGE VAKALI'S, Assistant Superintendent, Anchorage Schoo
District, (ASD), stated that the ASD supports the reinstatenent

of this bill for many reasons including mjor nmaintenance of
older facilities, and schools in need of nmajor renovation and/or
repl acenent. He said that debt reinbursement is necessary in
order to make this happen, and in the past, the |egislature has
supported debt reinbursenent prograns. He explained that the
ASD wants this bill reinstated at the 60 and/or 70 percent |evel

to allow flexibility for the districts to serve qualifying
schools as well as school related facilities.

[HB 13 was hel d over.]

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Committee on Education neeting was adjourned at 12:33:53
PM

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- February 1, 2005



